HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 8, 2006
1: 44 P. M

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmittee neeting to
order at 1:44:08 PM

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representati ve Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker

Representati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Mke Kelly
Representative Beth Kerttul a
Representative Carl Moses

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Jim Hol m
Representative Bruce Weyhrauch

ALSO PRESENT

Suzanne Cunni ngham  Staff, Representative Kevin Meyer;
Heat her Brakes, Staff, Senator CGene Therriault; Joe Bal ash,
Staff, Senator Gene Therriault; Witney Brewster, Director,
Division of Elections, Ofice of the Lt. Governor; Devon
Mtchell, Executive Director, Alaska Minicipal Bond Bank
Aut hority, Departnent of Revenue; Anne Carpeneti, Assistant
Attorney Ceneral, Legal Services Section-Juneau, Crim nal
Division, Departnment of Law, Annette Kreitzer, Chief of
Staff, Ofice of the Lieutenant Governor; Kevin Ritchie,
Executive Director, Al aska Minicipal League; Carl Rose,
Al aska Association of Alaska School Boards, Juneau; Bill
Byork, President, National Education Association (NEA)
Al aska

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Carol Samuels, Northwest Securities Corporation, Seattle,
Washi ngton; Doug Giffin, Al cohol Beverage Control Board,
Department of Public Safety; Captain Ed Harrington, Al aska
State Troopers, Department of Public Safety; John Shively
Hol | and Anmerica, Anchorage; Eric Wualey, Merril Lynch

SUMVARY

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 03/08/06 1:44 P. M



HB 278 An Act relating to the Al aska Minicipal Bond Bank
Authority; permtting the Al aska Minicipal Bond
Bank Authority or a subsidiary of the authority to
assi st state and nunici pal governnental enployers
by issuing bonds and other comercial paper to
enabl e the governnental enployers to prepay all or
a portion of the governnental enployers' shares of
the unfunded accrued actuarial liabilities of
retirement systens and authorizing governnental
enpl oyers to contract with and to issue bonds,
notes, or comrercial paper to the authority or its
subsidiary corporation for that purpose; and
providing for an effective date.

HB 278 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

SB 172 An Act relating to the presentation of initiatives
and referenda on the ballot.

SB 172 was HEARD and HELD in Conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

SB 210 An Act relating to t he manuf act ur e and
transportation of alcoholic beverages; relating to
forfeitures  of property for viol ations  of
al coholic bever age | aws; and relating to
vi ol ati ons of al coholic beverage | aws.

SB 210 was reported out of Commttee wth
“individual ” recomendati ons and with zero note #1
by the Departnment of Public Safety.

1:45:18 PM

#HB278
HOUSE BILL NO. 278

An Act relating to the Alaska Minicipal Bond Bank
Aut hority; permtting the Al aska Minicipal Bond Bank
Authority or a subsidiary of the authority to assist
state and nunici pal governnental enployers by issuing
bonds and other comercial paper to enable the
governnmental enployers to prepay all or a portion of
the governnmental enployers' shares of the unfunded
accrued actuarial liabilities of retirenent systens and
aut hori zi ng governnmental enployers to contract with and
to issue bonds, notes, or comercial paper to the
authority or its subsidiary corporation for that
pur pose; and providing for an effective date.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWKER, SPONSOR, stated that one of the
bi ggest issues facing the State of Alaska is the unfunded
pension liability. It has becone a growing issue the |ast

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/08/06 1:44 P. M



several years; |last year, a determ nation was made on how to

best address it. HB 278 recommends a way to address that
liability.
Representative Hawker stated there is a $6 billion dollar

deficit. He knew that the State could not cone up with that
anount of noney, however, the amount could be anortized over
time. The issue before the Cormittee is howto pay it off,
under st andi ng the conpound growmh rate of 8%

HB 278 provides a tool within the financial market to help
pay off the obligation with the |east possible cost to tax
payers. The idea is to borrow froman entity, asking a | ess
amount of interest and the difference would be a net savings
over time for the State.

1: 50: 59 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker suggested a possible savings close to
$1.5 billion dollars over the tine of the loan if the debt
is bonded out. He reiterated that this savings would be to
the taxpayers of the State of Al aska.

Represent ati ve Hawker acknow edged that borrowi ng the funds
woul d create a profound constitutional change and that such
a mechani smwas available within the international markets.

The bill was brought forward because it addresses the
capital market; municipalities wuld like to have the
consideration of that option and the statutory authority to
pursue it. He noted that the Mnicipality of Anchorage
supports the concept. The Al aska Muinici pal League (AM.) has
passed a resolution indicating that they would Ilike the
statutory authority to consider the option. The bill would

provide statutory authority to nunicipalities to pursue
pensi on obligation bond transactions.

1: 55: 08 PM

Representative Hawker stressed the sinplicity of the bill.
The nost conplicated aspect of the legislation is
under standing what pension obligation bonds are and the

associ ated benefits and ri sks. He recommended that staff
and legislators carefully read the back wup materials
regarding the transactions. Two firns interested in
pursuing the transactions are on line for testinmony &
guesti ons.
1:58:31 PM

Representative Hawker said pension bonds would be better
than the alternatives to solving the pension fund concern
Most nunicipalities do not have the ability to wite a check
to solve their pension fund issues. The annual required

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/08/06 1:44 P. M



paynent into the Teacher Retirenment System (TRS) anpbunts to
50% of the teacher’s gross pay. A pension bond obligation
woul d allow the State to reduce their matching requirenent.
The | ocal taxpayers end up paying nost of the cost for the
| ocal school districts.

Representative Hawker summarized significant points of
opposi tion:

e Too risky — risk that the State would not be able to
invest at 8% and borrow at 5% The spread between what
can be borrowed and what can be invested is called

arbi trage. Arbitrage has been illegal since 1986
There is a specifically allowed federal provision for
pensi on obligations. Representative Hawker was

confortable that investors would be able to continue
the 8% profit on investnents.

* The nmechanism of the bill is to grant the authority to
the Al aska Mnici pal Bond Bank to execute the
transactions on behalf of the nunicipalities, in order
to facilitate reaching all capital markets in the
country. The risk becones obligated to the State if
that authority faults. There is a noral obligation to
the State, if the municipality defaults.

* Some say that Wall Street would “frown on the benefit”
of issuing obligation to the nunicipalities. The
current pension obligation is a noral obligation to the
State of Al aska.

 There is fear that the nunicipalities would not *pay
up”. Representative Hawker did not agree.

Representative Hawker urged support for HB 278, believing
that capital markets are extrenmely self-governing and the
investors would not take a high risk with those accounts,
gi ven the high degree of self-regulation

2: 09:46 PM

Representati ve Hawker urged that the fiscal note be changed
to i ndeterm nate.

2:11: 04 PM

Co-Chair Meyer pointed out that representatives from
Nort hwest Securities Corporation were present to testify on
l'ine.

Representati ve Hawker advised that several firnms had taken
an interest in the State of Al aska. No one firm is
authorizing a transaction, only providing educationa
backup.

2:12: 26 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/08/06 1:44 P. M



Representative Kelly noted support for the l|egislation and
asked i f Fairbanks had indicated support for the option.

2:13: 39 PM

Representative Hawker replied that the bill does not address
speci fic concerns.

2:14: 28 PM

CAROL SAMUELS, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), NORTHWEST
SECURI TIES CORPORATI ON, SEATTLE WASHI NGTQON, provided an
overview of a power point presentation included in the file.
(Copy on File). She testified in favor of the bill.

2:16:46 PM

Ms. Sanuels referred to Page 1, the pension obligation bond
description. A pension obligation bond is a financing used
to defray unfunded pension costs. It is a replacenent
financing rather than a new obligation. Mny jurisdictions
have used pension obligation bonds to refinance the system
| oans at rates |lower than the anortization rate.

Ms. Samuels referred to Page 2, addressing why pension
obl i gati on bonds m ght be useful in Al aska.

. According to the recently released 2004 val uation
assum ng above average growth in popul ation, Public
Enpl oyees Retirenent System (PERS) rates rise to
32% of payroll beginning in 2011 and do not decline
until 2029 and the Teachers Retirenent System (TRS)

rates rise to 50% of payroll in 2011 and continue
i ncreasing to 56% by 2028 before declining.

. Pensi on obligation bonds can be an effective too
for i mredi atel y reduci ng payr ol | rates and
produci ng | ong-term savings for jurisdiction.

. In Oregon, jurisdictions are projected to save over
$1.3 billion dollars fromuse of that technique.

Ms. Sanuels continued, Page 3 provides a graph indicating
the Al aska Pension system asset base, covered enployees
*average enployer rate, funded ratio and the Unfunded
Accrued Actuarial Liability (UAAL) as of 2003 val uati on.

2:23:11 PM

Page 4 provides a graph of the bonding used as a popul ar
tool. Many jurisdictions throughout the country have chosen
to finance their PERS liability with bonds. In O egon:

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/08/06 1:44 P. M



A total of 133 school districts, cities, counties and
the State have issued $5.4 billion dollars of pension

bonds.

e Savings projected at $1.3 billion overall, assum ng an
8% rate of return.

* Oiginal statutory authority provided to |oca

governnents and school districts in 2001 for issuance
of “full faith and credit obligations”.

* School districts also granted authority to enter into
an intercept agreement wth the State, whereby,
operating funds were additionally pledged. The
approach resulted in “State” credit rating.

» State constitutional amendnent approved by voters in
2003 authorizing the State to issue General Obligation
(GO bonds for its share of the liability. Vot er
approval margin was 55.25%

2:25: 05 PM

Page 5 highlights the arbitrage issue. | ssuing a pension
bond is not like refinancing a nortgage. The success from
borrow ng depends on the market returning nore than the cost
of the bond.

2:27:47 PM

Ms. Sanuels continued, Page 6 indicates the Alaska Public
Retirement System (PERS) history of investnent results. She
pointed out that in Oegon, PERS has a long history of
strong i nvestnent performance:

. 10 year average: 12. 38%

. 15 year average: 12. 69%

. 56 year average: 10. 84%
2:29: 44 PM

Page 9 denonstrates the Al aska PERS systemw de refinancing
anal ysi s. A refinancing of the $3.4 billion PERS could

result in net present value savings of over $1 billion
dol | ars.

2:31:40 PM

Page 10 exam nes the savings available in refinancing the
Teachers Retirenment System (TRS). She estimated a $37
mllion dollar savings, which mght be redirected back into

the cl assroom

2:32:15 PM

Page 11 summarizes the | essons | earned over the past.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/08/06 1:44 P. M



1. Paynment to PERS does not guarantee UAAL will be paid
off in full.

2. What happens if UAAL is subsequently reduced or
i ncreased — reduction and |unp sum paynent woul d put
jurisdiction in surplus. Funds would not be
returned to jurisdiction, but surplus would be used
to reduce payroll rates further.

3. Structure of the financing matters — inappropriate
to wuse wunrealistic assunptions about rates of
return; anortization structure of bonds should match
anortization of UAAL that the PERS system uses; it
is not prudent to have back weighted structures
where all savings are produced in early years.

2:34: 04 PM

Ms. Samuel s noted several exanples of debt financing, which
had been acconplished in inappropriate ways. She noted that
8% was used as a reasonable rate of return, whereas 9% was
not appropriate in their opinion.

2: 34: 58 PM

Page 12 continues outlining the “house keeping” issues. She
noted that regulations would need to be drafted to ensure
that funds were accounted for and payroll rates were reduced
in a rational manner. She opined that work woul d need to be
done on the systemto ensure funds were protected.

2:38:19 PM

Ms. Sanuels noted Page 13 summarizes the intent of HB 278.
The bill authorizes access to capital markets for the
purpose of financing pension liabilities. It provides

express authorization for all types of jurisdictions to
issue obligations for that purpose either individually or
t horough another entity. It also provides authorization for
individual jurisdictions to pool together through a state
entity such as Bond Bank to achieve econonmics of scale.
Additionally, it will allow for credit support to enhance
access to the market such as, intercept of funding, bond
reserves and bond insurance.

2: 38: 59 PM

Vice Chair Stoltze questioned the nunber of agencies that
sell this type of bond. M. Sanuels replied that there are
multiple firms eager to help wth selling the bonds.
Represent ati ve Hawker added that any capital market woul d be
avai |l abl e to pursue such a transaction

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/08/06 1:44 P. M



2:39: 54 PM

Representative Kelly referred to the nechanism used to
determine a credit rating, inquiring if that would be
avai |l abl e and/or useful. Representative Hawker comrented
that was being researched and there would be a forthcom ng
amendnent .

Representative Kelly followed up wth queries about the
taxation structure of bonds. Representative Hawker
responded that in a 1986 federal statutory change, in order
to take advantage of arbitrage, the bonds becone executed on
a taxabl e basi s.

ERI C WHALEY, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), MERRIL LYNCH
noted questions that many nunicipalities raised regarding
how the legislation would inpact either the nmunicipality or
the State’'s bond rating. M. Whaley pointed out that an
unfunded liability already exists. One unfunded liability
woul d be repl aced by anot her.

A question was asked if the risk was not positive over a 20-
30 year tine period, would the State have been better off if
t he pension bond had not been issued. M. Whal ey provided
hi storical exanples since 1926 of when portfolios had a
return less than the bond rates and the only tine that
happened was just before the Geat Depression. He
acknow edged risk, commenting it is mninal

M. Whal ey offered to answer questions of the Commttee.

2:45: 04 PM

KEVIN RI TCH E, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA MUNI Cl PAL LEAGUE
(AML), JUNEAU, testified in favor of the legislation. AM
supports the State to allow enployers the option of
refinancing the PERS & TRS debt to avoid the 8.25% rate
i nposed by the system He enphasized that it would be a
tool for only sone municipalities; it is not a fix for all.
He added that the relationship between the State and the
school s are inportant.

2:46: 58 PM

M. Ritchie pointed out that the nunicipalities currently
are asking, given the funding provided |ast year to reduce
the 5% i ncrease, questioning what that neant for the |ong-
term health of the system He maintained that these are
i nportant policy questions that nust be addressed.

Representative Kelly referred to previous discussion
regarding the refinancing a portion of the fund. M.
Ritchie deferred to the finance specialists to better answer
t hat questi on.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/08/06 1:44 P. M



2:48: 30 PM

M. Ritchie reiterated that the municipalities do support
t he | egi sl ation.

2:48: 58 PM

Representative Hawker concurred that the |egislation would
be nore beneficial if it refinanced the entire fund,
however, knew that sone nunicipalities mght not be
confortable with that risk. It would be best to let them

each deci de.

2:49: 53 PM

Vice Chair Stoltze asked if each nunicipality's level of
debt woul d af f ect their ability to partici pate.

Represent ati ve Hawker responded t hat i ndeed,
muni ci palities would have to consider their own debt | oad
and rating circunstances. It represents a substantial

obligation and noted that each circunmstance woul d need to be
consi dered on an individual basis.

Vice Chair Stoltze thought t hat net - caps for t he
muni ci palities could be considered and wondered if that
potential exists.

Representati ve Hawker acknow edged that caps could affect
the nunicipality’s ability to participate or prohibit
financi ng opti ons.

2:51: 56 PM

Representative Kerttula asked how a nunicipality could go
about obtaining authorization for financing. Representative
Hawker responded, it would happen through the sanme process
used for current fi nanci al obligations incurred by
muni ci palities. He referred to AS 29, regarding authority
of rmunicipal debt and outlined the nethods to obtain
aut hori zation for nunicipal debt.

2:53: 35 PM

CARL ROSE, ALASKA ASSOCI ATION OF ALASKA SCHOOL BOARDS
JUNEAU, noted that on February 12'", 2006, Ms. Sanuels had
addressed their Board. He advised that the nunbers
inpressing him was the projected 50% anticipated increase
rate in payroll by 2011; increasing again to 56% by 2028
AASB supports the option for municipalities to refinance to
reduce the high rates affecting payroll. He noted
appreciation for all the work done on the bill.

2:56: 17 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/08/06 1:44 P. M



Bl LL BYORK, PRESI DENT, NATI ONAL EDUCATI ON ASSCCI ATI ON ( NEA)
ALASKA, expressed the organization's desire to explore the
proposed refinancing options. It is a critical tool for
addressing the State’s unfunded liability and that HB 278 is
essenti al .

2:57:30 PM

Representative Hawker sunmarized, noting that both the
financial and educational communities view the bill as a
viable tool but not supported by the Admnistration.
Amendnents will be forthcomng to address concerns. He

di sagreed that the risks outweigh the benefit.

Co-Chair Meyer stated that the Administration could testify
when the bill incorporated the anendnments, making it nore
support abl e.

2:58: 55 PM

HB 278 was HELD in Commttee for further consideration.

3:00: 22 PM
#SB210
SENATE BILL NO 210

An Act relating to the manufacture and transportation
of alcoholic beverages; relating to forfeitures of
property for violations of alcoholic beverage | aws; and
relating to violations of alcoholic beverage | aws.

HEATHER BRAKES, STAFF, SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT, rel ated that
in 2004, Congress passed |egislation recognizing that many
rural communities and their residents face the highest
al cohol abuse and famly violence rates in the country. The
Al aska Rural Justice and Law Enforcenment Conmm ssion was
established and it released a Draft Interim Report that
contains recomendations, including anmendnents to several
provisions in Alaska statutes. Senate Bill 210 is a
response to sone of the recommendations made in that report.

3:01: 44 PM

Ms. Brakes pointed out several changes. The first one
all ows seizure of alcohol transported by common carrier in
violation of current [|aw It allows for the authority to
sei ze property determ ned to have been purchased or obtained
through the proceeds of illegal inportation or sale of
al cohol, and it outlines procedures for a person claimng an
interest in property that has been seized. It also defines
“manufacture” of alcohol and clears up inconsistency in
statutes regarding allowable quantities of alcohol and the
presunption of possession for sale.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/08/06 1:44 P. M



Ms. Brakes reported that there are currently over 100
communities in Al aska that have chosen a l|local option to
limt or ban the sale of alcohol. She referred to the 2004
Annual Drug Report by the Departnent of Public Safety (copy
on file.) She noted that on pages 7 and 8, bootlegging
remai ns a lucrative business. SB 210 provides clarity and
consistency in the beverage control statutes in order to
assist law enforcenent and comunities in fighting the
illegal inportation of alcohol.

3:04:41 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker inquired about a change from12 liters
to 10 Y2 liters in the provision for possession of distilled
spirits. M. Brakes replied that AS 04.11.010(c) in Section
1 is being anended regarding the sale of spirits in order to
make | anguage consi stent throughout statutes.

Representati ve Hawker sunmarized that this change nmakes the

provision consistent with other statutory |anguage. He
referred to earlier testinony about forfeiture provisions
and the concern that a person could lose their hone. He

inquired about the judicial process related to that
situation. Ms. Brakes explained that the intent of SB 210
is to mrror the controlled substances statutes. Loss of a
person’s honme was a concern in a previous commttee. The
sponsor’s concern remai ns about soneone who paid for a home
from proceeds of an illegal activity. That property would
be subject to forfeiture, but there would be court
proceedings to meke the determ nation. Representative
Hawker stated that there would be a judicial process. MVs.
Br akes agreed.

3:08: 03 PM

Representative Kerttula noted that she would ask for a | ega
opi nion about what happens to famly nenbers in such a
situation.

DOUG GRI FFI'N, ALCOHOL BEVERAGE CONTROL BOARD, DEPARTMENT OF
PUBLI C SAFETY, offered to answer questions.

CAPTAI N ED HARRI NGTON, ALASKA STATE TROOPERS, DEPARTMENT OF
PUBLI C SAFETY, also offered to answer questions.

3:09:47 PM

Representative Kelly presented a scenario in a village
involving a common air carrier that lands in a dry village
with illegal alcohol on board before continuing on to a non-
dry village. He asked what the consequences would be for
the plane. Captain Harrington said that is not a problem
The troopers deal with it when the al cohol reaches the dry

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 03/08/06 1:44 P. M



vi | | age. Representative Kelly expounded on the possible
scenario when the plane reaches the dry village. He
wondered about an unintended consequence. He suggested
anot her scenario involving a boat on a river passing by a
dry wvillage and wondered about possi bl e unforeseen
consequences.

Vice Chair Stoltze noted those are valid questions.
Co- Chair Chenault closed public testinony.

3:13: 25 PM

Representative Kerttula redirected her question about the
famly menbers of a bootlegging situation to Anne Carpeneti .

ANNE CARPENETI, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, LEGAL SERVI CES
SECTI ON- JUNEAU, CRIM NAL DI VI SI ON, DEPARTMENT OF LAW
responded that the provision allowing the state to seize and
forfeit itenms purchased from illegal activity has been in
statute since 1982 and a house has never been seized. The
famly is protected under forfeiture | aw

Representative Kerttul a asked about the famly vehicle. M.
Carpeneti replied that there are safeguards for those types
of situations.

3:16: 04 PM

Representative Kelly asked for a response from Ms. Carpeneti
regarding his previous scenarios. Ms. Carpeneti explained
that there should be no problemin either situation because
t he plane and boat would be in transit and the al cohol woul d
stay on the vessel. There is a statute that requires
| abel i ng of al cohol intended for danp vill ages.

Representati ve Hawker noted on page 3 of the bill that
“itenms of value purchased fromthe proceeds” are being added
to the list of forfeitures. He wondered if an innocent
person who is paid from illegal proceeds, or given itens
purchased by illegal proceeds, is subject to consequences.
Ms. Carpeneti said that situation is also protected by
rem ssion procedures in current |aw that are not affected by
this bill.

Co-Chair Chenault asked what is being changed regarding
transporting alcohol by common carriers in dry villages.
Ms. Carpeneti said this bill refers only to al cohol that has
been illegally transported in violation to this particular
statute, which has particular |abeling requirenents.

3:19: 08 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 03/08/06 1:44 P. M



Representative Kerttula referred to Section 3, the 30 days
notice, and asked if the innocent spouse is included. MVs.
Carpeneti replied that they would have to file a notice of
their interest. She clarified that Section 3 streanlines
procedures when no one files a notice of interest and
addresses civil forfeitures, which don't happen often.

Representative Kerttula asked about the right to a jury
trial. Ms. Carpeneti replied that she thought forfeiture
proceedi ngs were not subject to a jury trial. She suggested
Captain Harrington respond to the question.

Representative Kerttula redirected her question to Captain
Harrington, who replied that he does not know He said that
nost forfeitures have been adjudicated at a crimnal trial.

Co-Chair Meyer corrected his statenent that the conmttee
has seen the bill previously.

3:22: 50 PM

Co-Chair Chenault MOVED to REPORT SB 210 out of Conmttee
with individual recomendations and with the acconpanying
zero fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was so
or der ed.

SB 210 was reported out of Conmttee wth a “no
reconmmendation” and with a zero note #1 by the Departnent of
Public Safety.

3:23:51 PM

#SB172
SENATE BILL NO. 172

An Act relating to the presentation of initiatives and
referenda on the ballot.

3:24: 42 PM

JOE BALASH, STAFF, SENATOR CGENE THERRI AULT, addressed the
bill. He noted that current |aw provides direction to the
| i eutenant governor to prepare both a ballot title and a
summary for the election ballot. The sunmary nust be “true
and inpartial” and is limted by the nunmber of words
allowed. There is a separate Iimtation for a ballot title.

SB 172 began as a neasure to increase the nunber of words in
the title. As |laws becone nore conplex, nore than six words
are often needed to describe them It becane apparent that
nore words to describe the summary were also needed. He
stated that the fiscal note was generated by the maxi num
al l owabl e words per section, as set forth in the bill.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 03/08/06 1:44 P. M



Representative Hawker expressed a desire to discuss the
fiscal note.

W TNEY BREWSTER, DI RECTOR, DI VISION OF ELECTIONS, commented

on the fiscal inpact of the bill. She expl ained that the
bill would nake it likely that the Division of Elections
woul d have to nove to two ballots. She stated that the

fiscal note reflects anticipated expenses for upcom ng
el ections. She also noted that two initiatives would likely
appear on the 2006 general election and primary ball ots.

3:28:31 PM

She noted that the division conducted a special election for
the Municipality of Anchorage in 2004, which generated the
figure to determne the cost for forty districts to have two
ball ots. She added that this could potentially increase to
three ballots.

Ms. Brewster pointed out that costs included hiring
additional tenporary enployees, ballot shipping, postage,
ballot translation into indigenous |anguage, additional
information in the election panphlet, advertisenment in the
newspaper, and an increase in costs for archiving ballots
after the election. She also noted that additional |anguage
on a ballot increases the tinme used in a voting booth to
read the | anguage.

3:31: 22 PM

Co-Chair Meyer opened the floor for public testinony.

JOHN SHI VELY, HOLLAND AMERICA, ANCHORAGE, testified in
support of the bill. He pointed out that initiatives
pertaining to his industry could not be captured in 100
wor ds. He suggested that as initiatives are becom ng nore
conplicated, nore words are required on ballots.

3:33: 08 PM
Co- Chair Meyer CLOSED PUBLIC TESTI MONY. He stated his
intention to hold the bill until conversations could be held

with the Division of Elections, and to hold any anendnents
until that tinme.

Representative Hawker raised questions regarding the fiscal
not e. He conceded that the trend of nore conplicated
initiatives required sonme action, but expressed surprise at
the extent of the fiscal note.

Representative Hawker asked whether the fiscal note was
generally correct. M. Balash noted that the sponsor’s
focus had been on the nunber of ballots required

Representati ve Hawker followed up by commenting on the size

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 03/08/06 1:44 P. M



of the fiscal note. M. Balash stated that the sponsor did
not question the assunptions of the fiscal note.

3:39: 06 PM

Representati ve Hawker asked whether a maxi num of 500 words
would be sufficient to describe even sonething as
conplicated as the cruise ship tax initiative. M. Bal ash
recall ed the previous year and the sponsor’s concern about a
very large bill with 129 words in the title. He specul ated

what woul d have happened if that bill was taken through a
ref erendum process. He continued that it was difficult to
descri be the scope of such a large bill in few words.

Representative Kerttula expressed concern that two pages on
a ballot mght make initiatives even nore confusing. She
also noted that it was nore difficult to abridge than to
expand a description. She suggested that it is a difficult
i ssue.

Representati ve Hawker asked for the sponsor’s intentions on
proceeding with the bill.

M. Bal ash noted that his work with the bill had ended after
| eaving the Judiciary Conmttee, but he expressed openness
to further suggestions. He referred to discussion with the
Li eutenant Governor’'s office regarding the nunber of words
per page. He referred to past ballots, such as those
contained in the 2004 general election. He expressed
concern from the sponsor that the type font not be reduced
in order to acconmodate the nunber of pages.

3:44: 34 PM

Representative Kerttula explained that Anmendnent #1 would
allow for an attachnment to a petition or referendum She
proposed that information be nade available at the polling
| ocation, as opposed to having it contained on the actua
bal | ot .

M. Bal ash stated that the notivation of the sponsor is that
the voters have the information. He asked how absentee
bal |l ots woul d be addr essed.

Representati ve Hawker recommended that for absentee ballots
a check box could be included, or it could be printed in the
of ficial election panphlet.

3:47: 59 PM

M. Balash thought those would be reasonable ideas for
consi der ati on.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 03/08/06 1:44 P. M



Representative Kelly asked about the $237,000 assunption.
M. Balash said he understood the direction of the
assunption, but preferred not to speak for the division. He
asked if the division wwuld speak to that. He noted that
t he sponsor accepted the assunpti on.

Representative Kelly voi ced concern about that.

3:50: 07 PM

ANNETTE KREI TZER, CHI EF OF STAFF, OFFICE OF THE LI EUTENANT
GOVERNOR, stated that there is no panphlet during a primry
el ection. She said that her office welcones scrutiny on the
fiscal note. She asked the director to not use the worse
case scenari o.

Ms. Brewster comented on posting the |anguage at the
polling place. She said it is currently required by |aw and
iIs posted in three locations in the polling place. She
offered to answer questions associated with the note.

3:52: 27 PM

Co- Chair Chenault asked about the printing cost of $237, 000.
Ms. Brewster replied that it is a hard cost at .37 cents per
ballot. The nunber of ballots printed in the 2004 genera
el ecti on was 642, 000.

Co-Chair Chenault asked why 642,000 ballots were printed

Ms. Brewster responded that the nunber included test
bal | ots. The nunber is based on what was printed in the
2004 el ecti on.

Co-Chair Chenault inquired how many people voted in that
election. M. Brewster offered to provide that information.

Co-Chair Chenault stated his intent to hold the bill to
discuss the fiscal note costs. Ms. Brewster addressed
sol uti ons. She offered to provide an official election

panphl et, which would include all of the |anguage and woul d
provide a smaller note.

3:55:24 PM

Co-Chair Chenault stated that would be discussed at the
nmeeti ng.

Representative Kerttula pointed out that the panphlet would
all ow both sides to present their information.

SB 210 was HELD in Conmmittee for further consideration.
#

ADJ OURNVENT

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 03/08/06 1:44 P. M



The neeting was adjourned at 3:55 P. M

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 03/08/06 1:44 P. M



